
 

  
 

                   

CALL TO ORDER:  The Chai ng to order at 7:00 PM. 

2. ROLL CALL:  Regular

 

 

John Potvin - Regular 2014 
Don Fellows - Regular 2015 

Jeffrey Ganong – Regular 2015  
Dan Nezol - Regular 2011 

Francis Drake, Jr. - Regular 2011 
Gerry Kamke - Associate 2014 
Steve Warren - Associate 2011 

 
    

 

1. 

 

MINUTES 
PLANNING BOARD 

JANUARY 27, 2011 

 

rman, Mr. Potvin called the meeti
  

 members present were Dan Nezol, Jeffrey Ganong, John Potvin, Francis 
Drake, Jr. and Don Fellows.  Associate members present were Steve Warren and Gerry Kamke was 
an excused absence.  Also present was Code Enforcement Officer, Michael Cote, and approximately 
15 citizens in the audience.  

 
The Chairman reviewed the Board’s policies and procedures. 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:   
 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT: 
Case #10-10 Applicant:  Premier Development 
                      Property Location:  170 Lisbon Street 
  Tax Map:  U21-6 
  Zone:  Commercial 
  Intended Use:  Remove gravel from gravel pit in excess of 500 cubic yards in a one 

               year period. 
 
The Chairman, Mr. Potvin opened the public hearing and asked Mr. Scott Kelly of Premier 
Development to explain the request.  Mr. Kelly said that they are planning to develop the property 
and in order to do so they will have to level it.  He said that they are still in the engineering phase 
and they do not know exactly what the exact number of cubic yards will be but do know that it will 
be in excess of the 500 cubic yards in the one year time frame requiring him to receive permission 
from the Planning Board. 
 
Linda Arsenault, 189 Lisbon Street asked how close to the property lines will they be leveling.  Mr. 
Kelly said he doesn’t know yet that as they are still in the planning stages with their engineer.  Ms. 
Arsenault asked about the existing tree lines and how they would be affected.  Mr. Kelly said that 
would be up to the Town and what they require through the Site Plan Application and Review.  
Ms. Arsenault asked what they plan on putting in there.  Mr. Kelly said initially it will be their own 
site and eventually they would like to develop additional commercial sites on the property as well. 
 
Dale Bouvier, 187 Lisbon Street asked if they will be leveling to the property line and he is 
concerned about losing the wind buffer that is currently provided by the hill and the tree line.  Mr. 
Kelly said that is not the intent that they want to leave a buffer.  He explained that some areas on 
the property will require them to obtain Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) permitting 
and they would like to have the site sheltered and improve the area over the years.  Mr. Kelly also 
said that once the plan is complete he will be able provide the public more details.  Mr. Bouvier 
asked if they could put the gravel in the lower areas of the existing pit.  Mr. Kelly said that they 
have already done that in the areas that they can, there are areas within the property that are more 
complex that that because they are in a designated wetland or near the Lisbon Water Departments 
water source and will require more permitting.   
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes Page 2 January 27, 2011 

* These minutes are not verbatim.  A recording of the meeting is on file. 

Mike Cote, Code Enforcement Officer (CEO) explained that Premier Development will have to 
come back to the Planning Board for the Site Plan and there will be another public hearing prior to 
approval. 
 
Chad Landry, 16 Moody Road said that he bought his property in 2005 they identified what they 
thought was the lot but had couldn’t identify the pins so they closed on what they thought was the 
lot and since Premier Development has started with the excavation and surveying they have a pin 
in the middle of his driveway, part of his garage isn’t on his property and the rear pin would be 3 
feet from his house causing the septic system to fall outside of the property line as well.  The 
previous owner obtained a permit to move the garage closer to the house so it used to be further 
away by about 35 yards so his question is how does this happen.  Mike, CEO said that anything 
built before 1975 is grandfathered and didn’t have to meet zoning requirements. When the 
property owners come in for permits they are responsible for finding the property lines and 
making sure that they meet the set back requirements. Mr. Landry said he is concerned because 
there is nothing there to protect him from them parking equipment 3 feet from his house if they 
wanted to.  Mr. Kelly said that he is willing to work with him and feels like it was an honest 
mistake.  They told Mr. Landry to go to the Town and figure out what the set-backs are and they 
will give him the land but beyond that he doesn’t know what else they can do. 
 
The Chairman, Mr. Potvin said that he doesn’t think this is the forum to resolve this problem but it 
sounded like something that both parties could work out amicably.  The Planning Board does not 
have any jurisdiction over this. 
 
Mr. Landry said that with these surveyed property lines his septic is not on his property does that 
mean if they develop there that he will be responsible for the costs of putting in a new septic 
system.  The Planning Board said that it is a legal issue and advised him to work with Mr. Kelly to 
come up with a reasonable agreement.  Mr. Kelly said they could walk the property, get a survey 
and finalize an agreement.  Mr. Cote said that the set-back in general residential is 10 feet. Mr. 
Fellows said that somewhere along the line he would imagine an attorney and/or a title company 
would be involved to make sure it gets done right. 
 
Steven Foster, 20 Moody Road, asked if they would be making a second entrance.  Mr. Kelly said 
there will be a secondary entrance from Moody Road there has to be because Maine Department of 
Transportation (MDOT) requires it.  Mr. Foster said he would be concerned with that because it is 
already so busy and it is very close to his house, it is right in his back yard.  Mr. Kelly said there has 
always been a road there; they just cut a few trees so vehicles could get in and out of there without 
damage. 
 
Bill Bauer, Water Commissioner of the Lisbon Water Department found out about this project 
about a year ago and went to talk to Mr. Kelly about it because they are concerned with the 
protection of their water source.  The well is right there and it is a recharge area.  He believes Mr. 
Kelly when he said they would not have an adverse impact on this supply and he hasn’t had a 
concern with any of the work he has done to date.  He does have a concern with the removal of 500 
cubic yards or more.  Mr. Bauer is concerned about the possibility or risk of losing this water 
supply and filtration system they have invested in and would like to ask the Planning Board to 
consider asking them to put some type of permeable membrane surface to protect the area and 
water source during the development.   
 
Mr. Bouvier asked if the Moody Road would be a second entrance and businesses are in there did I 
hear mention of a traffic light.  Mr. Kelly said yes.  Chairman, Mr. Potvin said that MDOT makes 
that final determination and Mr. Kelly does not control that.  Mr. Bouvier understands that he was 
just envisioning the impact that could have on traffic and traffic accidents.  Secondly if commercial 
development is going to be permitted how do we ensure that the water source will be protected?  
Mr. Potvin said that the Planning Board has recently passed the Wellhead Protection Ordinance on 
to Council for approval and the ordinance addresses the protection issues and limit what types of 
businesses can come in. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes Page 3 January 27, 2011 

* These minutes are not verbatim.  A recording of the meeting is on file. 

Mr. Bauer, Water Commissioner said he believed that back in the 1960’s there was some type of 
injunction filed against crushed stone, not permitting them to remove any more gravel from that 
area.  Mr. Kelly said that there is no gravel left in the pit and a membrane would be too cost 
prohibitive and the Wellhead Protection Ordinance will address this.  Mr. Bauer said he just wants 
to make sure the Planning Board has all the facts. 
 
Ms. Arsenault asked where they were taking material out from.  Mr. Kelly said straight back by the 
Pine trees. 
 
There were no comments and the Chairman closed the Public Hearing for this case. 
 

4. REGULAR MEETING: 
 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT: 
Case #10-10 Applicant:  Premier Development 
  Intended Use:  Remove gravel from gravel pit in excess of 500 cubic yards in a one 
                year period. 
 
Mr. Warren asked if they will be having a Hydrologist.  Mr. Kelly said they don’t have one right 
now but are aware of the requirement.  Mr. Eldridge said if they are working with Wright Pierce 
that they have a hydrologist on staff. 
 
Mr. Fellows asked if the will have a lot of work with DEP.  Mr. Kelly is not sure but it doesn’t look 
like too much.  Mr. Fellows said the requirements are very stiff and will be very clean businesses 
going in. 
 
Mr. Warren asked if they would be looking to tie in to City Sewer.  Mr. Kelly said yes. 
 
Mr. Fellows asked if he plans on amicably settling the property line issues.  Mr. Kelly said yes. 
 
ACTION TAKEN:  Mr. Ganong seconded by Mr. Drake moved to approve the Conditional Use 
Permit for Premier Development.  Vote 5-0 Carried. 
 
FINISH DISCUSSION PERTAINING TO UPLAND RD. & RTE. 9 COMMERCIAL ZONING: 
The Chairman, Mr. Potvin explained that the Planning Board would like to postpone this 
discussion and include it with the public hearing required to change the Comprehensive Plan; the 
public hearing notice needs to run 30 days prior to the public hearing. 
 
2011-2012 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET: 
Mr. Stephen Eldridge, Town Manager explained that the charter requires Planning Board approval 
of the Capital Improvement Plan.  The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a guideline and is subject 
to Council approval.  He explained that sometimes the Council makes decisions to put certain 
projects off so the plan before you tonight is not cut in stone.  The Planning Board needs to make 
sure that the CIP is in line with our Comprehensive Plan and meets the needs of the Town.  Mr. 
Eldridge said that a lot of these proposed projects are not likely to receive funding due to current 
conditions of our economy.  Mr. Eldridge said he will need to report that we have received 
Planning Board approval and the Council will hold a public hearing and approve the CIP. 
 
Mr. Warren said that it would be helpful to him to have the items listed in the Comprehensive Plan 
updated to reflect what has already been completed. 
 
Mr. Eldridge said that our new Finance Director did a wonderful job developing a new form for 
Department Head submission.  He also said that the Campus Avenue building has been sold and is 
off the list, the Public Works building is almost done but the economy has slowed the process on 
that project.  The Capital Improvement Plan is a planning tool. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes Page 4 January 27, 2011 

* These minutes are not verbatim.  A recording of the meeting is on file. 

Mr. Fellows seconded by Mr. Drake motioned to approve the 2011-2012 Capital Improvement Plan 
as presented.  Vote 5-0 Carried.  
 

5. OTHER BUSINESS:  None. 
 

6. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
Minutes of November 18, 2010. 
 
ACTION TAKEN:  Mr. Fellows seconded by Mr. Drake moved to approve the minutes of  
November 18, 2010.  Vote 5-0.  Carried.  
 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT: 
    
   ACTION TAKEN:  Mr. Ganong, seconded by Mr. Drake moved to adjourn at 7:50 P.M.   
   Vote 5-0 Carried. 
 

          Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Jody Durisko  

   Administrative Assistant 


